Council
Town Hall
Wallasey
11 November, 2015

Dear Councillor
You are hereby summoned to attend an extraordinary meeting of
the Council to be held at 6.00 pm on Thursday, 19 November
2015 in the Council Chamber, within the Town Hall, Wallasey, to
take into consideration and determine upon the following subjects:
Contact Officer:
Tel:
e-mail:
Website:

Andrew Mossop
0151 691 8501
andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk
http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members of the Council are asked to consider whether they have any
disclosable pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest, in
connection with any matter to be debated or determined at this
meeting and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of such interest.

2.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive the Mayor's announcements and any apologies for
absence.

3.

MATTERS REQUIRING APPROVAL BY THE COUNCIL
To consider any recommendations which require the approval of the
Council.
3a Potential Devolution of Powers and Resources - Liverpool
City Region (Pages 1 – 32)
Report of the Chief Executive

3b Car Parking Charges (Page 33)
Cabinet Minute 72 (5 November, 2015) is attached and the
Council is recommended to approve the ‘free parking after 3’
scheme as agreed by Cabinet.
4.

VACANCIES
To receive nominations, in accordance with Standing Order 25(6), in
respect of any proposed changes in the membership of committees,
and to approve nominations for appointments to outside organisations.
OUTSIDE BODIES
(i).

Clatterbridge Cancer Centre NHS Foundation Trust

Councillor Mike Sullivan to replace Councillor Matt Daniel (appointed
until 27 September 2017)
(ii).

Wirral Chamber of Commerce

Vacancy, formerly Mr K Adderley
ADVISORY COMMITTEES AND WORKING PARTIES
(iii).

Birkenhead Business Improvement District Steering Group

Vacancy, formerly Mr K Adderley
5.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
To consider any other items of business that the Mayor accepts as
being urgent.

Head of Legal and Member Services

WIRRAL COUNCIL
SPECIAL COUNCIL
19 NOVEMBER 2015
SUBJECT:

Potential Devolution of Powers and
Resources - Liverpool City Region

WARD/S AFFECTED:

All

REPORT OF:

Chief Executive

1.0 REPORT SUMMARY
1.1 This report provides an update for members with regards to the proposed
devolution of powers and resources from Government to Liverpool City Region.
1.2 On 4 September 2015, the Liverpool City Region forwarded its devolution
submission to Government (see Appendix 1).
1.3 At the time of writing this report, the proposed devolved powers and resources
(the Devolution Agreement) is still being negotiated with Government. Should
further details become available, then appropriate supplementary information
and/or papers will be circulated to Members in advance of the Council meeting.
2.0

RECOMMENDATION/S

2.1

It is recommended that Council notes:
i.

the current position as set out in section 3 of the report with regard
to Liverpool City Region’s devolution proposals; and

ii.

that the devolution process is still in negotiation and that further
information will be presented to Council for Members’ consideration
when it becomes available.

3.0

REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

3.1

To provide an update to Council on the current position regarding negotiations
on the potential devolution of powers and resources from Government to
Liverpool City Region.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
4.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1

Not negotiate a devolution deal with Government. This would place the City
Region at a real disadvantage compared to those areas that have secured a
devolution agreement which includes greater funding and powers from
Government. The City Region would be left to compete for funding from a
much smaller pot which has had resources top sliced for those areas which
have successfully negotiated devolution deals. The City Region would have
no ability to agree its own spending priorities. It would be faced with the reality
of continuing to do “more with less”; and having to weather further future
spending cuts which face the public sector without any flexibility or additional
resources which the devolution deal offers to the City Region.

4.2

Government have also indicated that there is a small window of opportunity
for devolution agreements in line with their CSR timetable. Therefore there
would be no possibility for the City Region to negotiate a similar deal at a later
date should it not reach agreement with Government at this time.

4.3

To negotiate a significantly reduced devolution deal without a directly Elected
Mayor arrangement. Government require strong governance proposals in
place for those areas which are seeking the maximum level of powers and
resources. Without a directly Elected Mayor, Government has been clear that
the level of resources and powers on offer would be substantially less and as
with (4.1) above would place the city region at a distinct disadvantage with
other comparable areas. The Cornwall devolution deal is an example of how
the Government has devolved comparatively fewer powers to areas that do
not pursue a directly Elected Mayor.

5 BACKGROUND INFORMATION
5.1 Following the Parliamentary election in May 2015, the new Government
indicated their commitment to pursue the devolution agenda in England. The
Cities and Local Government Devolution Bill is now progressing through
Parliament; allowing for devolution of powers and resources to local areas
alongside a preferred governance model of a directly Elected Mayor.
5.2 In the budget statement of 8 July 2015, the Chancellor of the Exchequer
confirmed the Government’s commitment to negotiate a “devolution deal” with
the Liverpool City Region, following discussions between the Combined
Authority and Government Ministers.
5.3 At the same time the Chancellor confirmed his commitment to taking forward
the development of the “Northern Powerhouse” concept making the case that
the lack of economic and physical connections between the cities and city
regions of the North of England was holding back their growth, with significant
implications for the national economy. It is clear that the Chancellor sees rebalancing the economy as a key policy commitment and a number of
interventions have been announced to help turn the Northern Powerhouse into

reality. This includes the Devolution Deals announced to date (Greater
Manchester, Sheffield City Region, the North East and Tees Valley), Transport
for the North and the Northern Transport Strategy.
5.4 The Liverpool City Region has the opportunity, through devolution, to become a
significant component of the Northern Powerhouse. The River Mersey and the
Liverpool Bay together with the Superport are unique economic assets that
have the ability to transform the Northern economy. The City Region is also
well positioned to be at the heart of an advanced manufacturing network across
the North having science and innovation strengths at Daresbury and Liverpool
Knowledge Quarter and world class firms like Jaguar Land Rover, Getrag,
Unilever, Pilkington’s Ineos Chlor and Cammell Laird.
5.5 Devolution offers the City Region the opportunity to gain much greater control
over its own destiny. As public finances become increasingly challenging
having local decision making powers over significant areas of national
government spend is a much better position to be in than the current system
whereby priorities for local services and funding are decided in London. It is the
long term ambition for the City Region to develop a new “place based”
relationship with Government which will ultimately provide for significant
influence over all public expenditure within the City Region, estimated at c.
£18.2bn per annum.
5.6 It is important to state that devolution is about assuming additional powers,
control and resource from central government to enable the City Region and
local members to be better able to discharge their existing functions. It is not
about assuming powers up from constituent local authorities. This is at the
heart of the City Region’s proposals which are being negotiated with
Government.
5.7 The City Region’s outline submission to Government was made on 4
September 2015 and was focused on a ‘place-based’ approach to:



5.8

Accelerate economic growth - growing jobs and increasing productivity;
Public service reform – local re-design and co-ordination of services to
reduce costs and improve outcomes across the whole of the public sector;
and
Improved social outcomes and better health and wellbeing of local
residents.

The submission and subsequent negotiations has focused on four key areas
which needed to be considered by Government alongside their Comprehensive
Spending Review (CSR) 2015. They are :
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

Economic Development including an investment fund, business
support, European Funding, energy and culture
Transport
Housing and Planning
Employment and Skills

5.9

The City Region has undertaken stakeholder engagement and consultation on
these themes and broader proposals. This has been a positive exercise with
the findings outlined in the consultation section of this report.

5.10

At the time of writing this report, negotiations are ongoing to determine the size
and scope of a potential devolution agreement with Government and further
details will be presented to members when they become available.

5.11

TIMESCALE FOR ACTION

5.12

Further details on the proposed timetable for implementation will be presented
to Members if the City Region considers the scale of the devolution package to
be sufficient to enter into an agreement with Government.

6

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no financial implications to this report. Once a potential agreement is
reached with Government, Council will be given full details of all financial
implications.
7

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 There are no legal implications to this report. Once a potential agreement is
reached with Government, Council will be given full details of all legal
implications, including any proposed governance implications.
8

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS

8.1 There are no such implications to this report. Once a potential agreement is
reached with Government, Council will be given full details of all such
implications.
9

RELEVANT RISKS

9.1 The relevant risks are set out in the report.
10

ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION

10.1 The Liverpool City Region Combined Authority’s consultation on the four
prioritised areas for negotiation with Government commenced on 21 September
2015 until 2 November 2015.
10.2 The consultation framework adopted incorporated three levels of engagement –
corporate, area and political.
10.3 For each priority, a lead Chief Executive was identified to manage the
consultation process with key stakeholders.
10.4 Targeted public engagement has taken place with thematic stakeholder groups
including business representatives and key strategic Boards to inform the

scope of the City Region’s proposals. Feedback was extremely helpful and
those who engaged in the process were supportive of the approach being
taken.
10.5 A website - www.liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk and intranet copy was set up to
support consultation which was promoted by each local authority. The website
provided an outline narrative of the proposals and approach. It also
incorporated a feedback facility, news items on local authority and partner
agency websites, updates in newsletters and social media channels. In
addition, internal communication channels were utilised.
10.6 Of the responses received to the feedback facility referred to above, 41
responses were received and over 75% of those responses were supportive of
devolution with recurring themes of:
 Improving transport infrastructure and public transport accessibility
 Accelerating housebuilding and physical regeneration
 Ensuring residents can develop skills needed by employers
 Reducing inequality across the City Region
 Capitalising on the value of the City Region’s cultural sector
 Increasing local sovereignty and autonomy over funding
10.7 A small proportion of responses raised concerns about devolution with specific
reference to the risk of:
 Increased shared services and reduction in public sector jobs
 Loss of local accountability
 Loss of identity of areas within the City Region
11
11.1

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no direct equality implications associated with this report as it
deals with the issue of devolution at a strategic level. Equality analysis will
be undertaken in future as appropriate.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Eric Robinson
Chief Executive

APPENDICES
Appendix 1:

LCR Devolution Submission of 4 September 2015

REFERENCE MATERIAL
N/a

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting
Cabinet
Cabinet
Cabinet and Council
Cabinet and Council

Date
12 July 2013
8 August 2013
19 September 2013
10 March 2014

CABINET
5 NOVEMBER 2015
72

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR (PART 1) - CAR
PARKING CHARGES
Councillor Phil Davies informed the Cabinet that there was one item of urgent
business for which a decision would be required in advance of the next meeting of
Cabinet.
Councillor Stuart Whittingham proposed, in line with one of the Council Plan pledges,
thriving small business and improving local high streets, that he was proposing the
introduction of ‘free parking after 3’ in Council owned car parks from 1 December
until the end of December.
The estimated cost of this would be £12,000 and, thanks to good management,
would be met from within existing budgets.
Councillor Phil Davies commented that this would be good news for the local
economy and was pleased that through prudent financial management the costs
would be absorbed within budget.
RESOLVED: That (1) from Tuesday, 1 December until the end of December 2015 the Council cuts
the cost of parking in Council owned car parks by introducing free parking
after 3pm;
(2) on Boxing Day and New Year’s Day the Council provides free all day
parking in Council owned car parks; and
(3) officers be instructed to evaluate any change in usage in Council owned
car parks compared to previous years.
(4) that, in accordance with the Budgetary Policy Framework, the matter be
referred to Council on 19 November, 2015 for approval.

